Town of Simsbury Board of Selectmen SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES Wednesday, May 24, 2017 at 10:00PM Simsbury Town Offices – Main Meeting Room 933 Hopmeadow Street, Simsbury, Connecticut

PRESENT: First Selectman Lisa Heavner, Selectmen Sean Askham, Cheryl Cook, Christopher Kelly, Elaine Lang and Michael Paine.

ABSENT: None.

ALSO PRESENT: Finance Director Sean Kimball, Director of Administrative Services Thomas Cooke, Deputy Director of Administrative Services Melissa Appleby, and Police Captain Nicholas Boulter.

The Special Meeting of the Board of Selectmen convened at 10:00PM.

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

All present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. PUBLIC AUDIENCE:

Mr. Robert Kalechman of 781 Hopmeadow Street shared comments opposing Connecticut Business and Industry Association providing in-kind combinations to State Representative John Hampton's campaign. He also opposed Mr. Hampton's use of public campaign funds.

Ms. Joan Coe of 26 Whitcomb Drive shared comments suggesting that it may be a good idea to vote down the budget to allow time to revise the budget. Ms. Coe also reported that when she recently sought a fee schedule from the Performing Arts Center, she learned one does not exist and that fees are determined only after a proposal is submitted.

3. PRESENTATIONS:

A. Approve Language of Referendum Questions and Other Final Budget Actions.

Mr. Askham moved, with Ms. Lang seconding the motion, to make the following resolution:

Pursuant to Section 808 of the Town Charter, the following motions were introduced as the Special Meeting of the Board of Finance on May 24, 2017:

Be it resolved, that the appropriation recommended and approved by the Board of Finance for the purposes of paying the expenses of the Board of Selectmen annual budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, shall be approved and implemented in the amount of \$22,604,910.

Be it resolved, that the appropriation recommended and approved by the Board of Finance for the purposes of paying the expenses of the Board of Education annual budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, shall be approved and implemented in the amount of \$68,125,170.

Be it resolved, that the appropriation recommended and by the Board of Finance for the purposes of paying the expenses of Sewer use fund (Sewer Treatment Plant), Residential Rental Properties, Simsbury Farms/Special Programs, Non-Public Schools, Debt Retirement/Capital and Capital non-Recurring annual budgets for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 shall be approved and implemented in the amount of \$12,464,827.

In accordance with Sections 406 (Automatic Referendum) and 808 (Duties of the Board of Finance on the budget) of the Charter, the recommended operating budgets will be submitted to a referendum in the following forms:

Questions for Referendum Ballot:

- 1. Shall the appropriation recommended and approved by the Board of Finance for the purposes of paying the expenses of the Board of Selectmen annual budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, be approved and implemented in the amount of \$22,604,910?
- 2. Shall the appropriation recommended and approved by the Board of Finance for the purposes of paying the expenses of the Board of Education annual budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, be approved and implemented in the amount of \$68,125,170?
- 3. Shall the appropriation recommended and approved by the Board of Finance for the purposes of paying the expenses of Sewer Use Fund (Sewer Treatment Plant), Residential Rental Properties, Simsbury Farms/Special Programs, Non-Public Schools, Debt Retirement/Capital and Capital Non-Recurring annual budgets for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, be approved and implemented in the amount of \$12,464,827?

Motion passed unanimously.

B. Set Date for Automatic Referendum, pursuant to Section 406 of the Town Charter, for Tuesday, June 13, 2017 from 6:00AM to 8:00PM at Henry James Memorial School.

Mr. Askham moved, with Ms. Cook seconding the motion, to set the date of Tuesday, June 13, 2017 for automatic referendum, pursuant to Section 406 of the Town Charter, from 6:00AM to 8:00PM at Henry James Memorial School. Motion passed unanimously.

MOTION: Mr. Askham, Mr. Paine second, to adopt the following resolution:

Upon motion duly made, seconded, and adopted, the reading into the Minutes of the full text of the resolutions set out below is waived, copies of the resolutions having been made available to those in attendance, and is recorded in the records immediately preceding these minutes. The general purpose projects bonds with a total amount of \$5,533,548, Water Pollution Control projects totaling \$470,000, Board of Education projects totaling \$740,000, and from the general fund \$315,000. The total proposed Capital Improvement Projects totaled \$7,058,548; unanimously approved.

4. ADJOURN:

MOTION: Mr. Askham, Ms. Lang second, to adjourn at 10:15PM; unanimously approved.

Respectfully submitted,

Pamela A. Colombie Commission Clerk

Resolution of the Board of Selectmen

RESOLVED, that the Board of Selectmen hereby approves the following projects, which were not included in the Town's Capital Improvement Plan for the ensuing year but the need to fund such projects is in the best interest of the Town:

Park Improvements Regulations Update Finance Security Upgrades Library Lower Level Improvements

38 Drake Hill Road Dike Analysis Phosphorous Removal Analysis Hayes Road Pump Station Upgrade Tariffville Area Sewer Repairs Water Pollution Control Plan Update

Resolution of the Board of Selectmen

RESOLVED,

Upon motion duly made, seconded and adopted, the reading into the minutes of the full text of the resolutions set out below is waived, copies of the resolutions having been made available to those in attendance, and is recorded in these records immediately preceding these minutes.

General Purpose Projects (Bonds):		
Simsbury Farms Rink/Pool Improvements	\$	950,000
Park Improvements		235,000
Street Lighting Purchase / Lighting Improvements		400,000
Iron Horse Boulevard Playground Renovation		298,000
Finance Security Upgrades		150,000
Eno Hall Renovations		300,000
Bridge Improvements		805,000
Cold Storage Facility		380,000
Town Facilities Master Plan		400,000
Various Drainage Improvements		125,000
Library Interior/Parking Renovations	584,500	
Library Lower Level Improvements	906,048	
	\$5,533,548	
Water Pollution Control Projects (SUF):		
38 Drake Hill Road Dike Analysis	\$	75,000
Phosphorous Removal Analysis		150,000
Hayes Road Pump Station Upgrade		45,000
Tariffville Area Sewer Repairs		100,000
Water Pollution Control Plan Update	100,000	
	\$	470,000
Board of Education Projects (Bonds):		
SHS Tennis Court Replacement		740,000
STIS Tellins Court Replacement		\$740,000
		\$740,000
General Fund		
Open Space Planning and Improvements	\$	140,000
POCD, Land Use Studies	4	35,000
Regulation Update		65,000
Dam Evaluations and Repairs		75,000
•	\$	315,000
TOTAL PROPOSED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS		058,548
	Ψ / 9	,

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$950,000 FOR SIMSBURY FARMS RINK/POOL IMPROVEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate NINE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$950,000) for improvements to the lap pool, diving pool, training pool and the wading pool, including plaster repair and refinishing, new drains, decking and mechanical systems in the filter room including replacement of valves, flow meters, pumps, chemical control systems and filters and other related work. The appropriation may be spent for engineering and other consultants' fees, construction and equipment costs, materials, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed appropriate NINE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$950,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed appropriate NINE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$950,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town

pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

FURTHER RESOLVED,

- (a) that pursuant to the Charter, the resolution above shall be submitted to the voters in the manner provided by Section 406 thereof on June 13, 2017, between the hours of 6:00 A.M. and 8:00 P.M.
- (b) The resolution shall be placed upon the voting machines or paper ballots under the following heading:

"SHALL THE TOWN OF SIMSBURY APPROPRIATE \$950,000 FOR SIMSBURY FARMS POOL IMPROVEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZE BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION?"

Voters approving said resolution will vote "Yes" and those opposing said resolution shall vote "No".

Electors and persons qualified to vote in town meetings who are not electors will vote at the following polling place:

Henry James Memorial Junior High School Gymnasium 155 Firetown Road, Simsbury, Connecticut

Absentee ballots will be available from the Town Clerk's office.

(c) Notice of the referendum shall be given by the Town Clerk.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$235,000 FOR PARK IMPROVEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

RESOLVED.

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate TWO HUNDRED THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$235,000) for upgrades to Town parks and facilities including roadway and parking improvements, irrigation system repair and replacement, trail re-construction, rink building painting and the installation of an equipment wash-down area and other related work. The appropriation may be spent for engineering and other consultants' fees, site work, equipment, materials, legal fees, permit fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed TWO HUNDRED THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$235,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed TWO HUNDRED THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$235,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to

maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$400,000 FOR ACQUISITION OF AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE LIGHTS AT TOWN PARKS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$400,000) for the acquisition of and improvements to the lights at the Simsbury Farms Recreation Complex and other town parks and public parking lots. The appropriation may be spent for engineering and other consultants' fees, acquisition costs, utility fees, site work, equipment, materials, legal fees, net interest on borrowings and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project or its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$400,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$400,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to

maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$298,000 FOR IRON HORSE BOULEVARD PLAYGROUND RENOVATIONS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate TWO HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$298,000) for the renovation of the Boundless Playground located at Simsbury Meadows, including replacement of equipment, fencing, surfacing and other related work. The appropriation may be spent for engineering and other consultants' fees, site work, equipment, materials, legal fees, net interest on borrowings and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project or its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to TWO HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$298,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed TWO HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$298,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to

maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$150,000 FOR FINANCE SECURITY UPGRADES; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$150,000) for finance security upgrades for the Town and Board of Education, including a fraud audit and cyber security analysis, financial system upgrades and data encryption, enhanced cybersecurity training, fire wall upgrades to include intruder detection system and active directory integration and a capital asset/technology inventory system. The appropriation may be spent for consultant services, training, equipment, furnishings, materials, site improvements, software, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$150,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Sections 7-369 and 10-289 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$150,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Sections 7-378 and 10-289a of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend

such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$300,000 FOR RENOVATION AND IMPROVEMENTS TO ENO MEMORIAL HALL; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate of THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$300,000) for the renovation of Eno Memorial Hall, including renovations to the kitchen area and lower level bathrooms, auditorium sound system and related improvements. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, site work, construction and equipment costs, furniture, fixtures, equipment, materials, legal fees, permit fees net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope, of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$300,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$300,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.

- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.
- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

-2-

96958386.3

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$805,000 FOR BRIDGE IMPROVEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate EIGHT HUNDRED FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$805,000) for bridge improvements, including replacement or renovations of major stream crossing structures including the bridge deck and rail system on Firetown Road, Hop Brook bridge deck and structure paint, Climax Road bridge deck, rail system and structure paint, Town Forest Road bridge deck and masonry, Rail Trail S11 stone arch masonry, Rail Trail S16 culvert replacement, Stratton Brook culvert replacement and Flower Bridge repairs and painting. The appropriation may be spent for investigation, design, engineering and other consultants' fees, testing, inspection, construction and equipment costs, permit fees, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed EIGHT HUNDRED FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$805,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed EIGHT HUNDRED FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$805,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the

project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$380,000 FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A COLD STORAGE FACILITY; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$380,000) for construction of an approximately 5,000 s.f. cold storage facility and related work. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, construction costs, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$380,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$380,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes

- authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.
- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$400,000 FOR A TOWN FACILITIES MASTER PLAN; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$400,000) for a Town facilities master plan including the review and assessment of Town owned and maintained structures and buildings in order to determine priority and costs for future capital improvements. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$400,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$400,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to

maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$125,000 FOR VARIOUS DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$125,000) for drainage improvements and cross culvert replacement to improve drainage on East Weatogue Street, Hoskins Road, Canal Street and Tariffville Heights. The appropriation may be spent for site work, easements, construction and equipment costs, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$125,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$125,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to

maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$584,500 FOR LIBRARY INTERIOR/PARKING RENOVATIONS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FOUR THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS (\$584,500) for renovations, including new carpeting and flooring for the upper and lower levels and painting of the entire interior, replacing exhaust fans in all public restrooms, replacement of the existing telephone system, reconstruction of the parking lot and removal of trees from Scout Hall and related work. The Town anticipates receipt of grants to defray, in part, the appropriation. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, site work, construction and equipment costs, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FOUR THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS (\$584,500) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FOUR THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS (\$584,500). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the

project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$906,048 FOR SIMSBURY PUBLIC LIBRARY-LOWER LEVEL INTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate NINE HUNDRED SIX THOUSAND FORTY-EIGHT DOLLARS (\$906,048) for renovations to the Library's lower level, consisting of a meeting room with built-in cabinetry, storage area, technology resources for presentations, additional gallery/display space, and lighting, floor and wall finishes in the new hallway area and related work, renovations to the existing accessible bathroom, and related work. The Town anticipates receipt of grants to defray, in part, the appropriation. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, site work, construction, furniture, fixtures and equipment costs, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed NINE HUNDRED SIX THOUSAND FORTY-EIGHT DOLLARS (\$906,048) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-369 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed NINE HUNDRED SIX THOUSAND FORTY-EIGHT DOLLARS (\$906,048). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 7-378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the

project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE SEWER USE FUND \$75,000 FOR COSTS IN CONNECTION WITH 36 DRAKE HILL ROAD DIKE ANALYSIS

RESOLVED.

(a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the Sewer Use Fund SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$75,000) for costs in connection with 36 Drake Hill Road consisting of the evaluation of the existing dike protection system around the Water Pollution Control Facility. The appropriation may be spent for studies, design, investigations, construction and installation costs, equipment, materials, engineering, part-time employees, inspection and consultant fees, administrative costs, permit fees, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Water Pollution Control Authority may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE SEWER USE FUND \$150,000 FOR COSTS IN CONNECTION WITH PHOSPHOROUS REMOVAL ANALYSIS

RESOLVED,

(a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the Sewer Use Fund ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$150,000) for costs in connection with a phosphorous removal analysis. The appropriation may be spent for design, inspection and consultant fees, administrative costs, permit fees, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Water Pollution Control Authority may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE SEWER USE FUND \$45,000 FOR HAYES ROAD PUMP STATION UPGRADE

RESOLVED,

(a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the Sewer Use Fund FORTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$45,000) for the Hayes Road Pump Station Upgrade consisting of upgrading the controls, permit fees, and placing the pump station on the SCADA telemetry system. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, construction and equipment costs, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Water Pollution Control Authority may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE SEWER USE FUND \$100,000 FOR COSTS IN CONNECTION WITH SEWER REPAIRS IN THE TARIFFVILLE AREA

RESOLVED,

(a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the Sewer Use Fund ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$100,000) for costs in connection with sewer rehabilitation and repairs in the Tariffville area. The appropriation may be spent for investigations, design, construction and installation costs, equipment, materials, engineering, part-time employees, inspection and consultant fees, administrative costs, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Water Pollution Control Authority may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE SEWER USE FUND \$100,000 FOR WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN UPDATE

RESOLVED,

(a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$100,000) for a water pollution control plan update. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Water Pollution Control Authority may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$740,000 SIMSBURY HIGH SCHOOL TENNIS COURT REPLACEMENT; AND AUTHORIZING BONDS AND NOTES IN THE SAME AMOUNT TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION

- (a) That the Town of Simsbury appropriate SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$740,000) for replacement of Simsbury High School tennis courts including reconstruction of six tennis courts, including new base and subsurface drainage materials, pavement, surface coating, net posts and fencing. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, construction and equipment costs, materials, legal fees, net temporary interest and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the project and its financing. The Board of Education may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.
- (b) That the Town issue bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed appropriate SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$740,000) to finance the appropriation for the project. The bonds or notes shall be issued pursuant to Sections 7-369 and 10-289 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any other enabling acts. The bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The term of the bonds or notes shall not exceed ten years.
- (c) That the Town issue and renew temporary notes from time to time in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds or notes for the project. The amount of the notes outstanding at any time shall not exceed appropriate SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$740,000). The notes shall be issued pursuant to Sections 7-378 and 10-289a of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended. The notes shall be general obligations of the Town and shall be secured by the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town shall comply with the provisions of Section 7-378a of the General Statutes with respect to any notes that do not mature within the time permitted by said Section 7-378.
- (d) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer of the Town shall sign any bonds or notes by their manual or facsimile signatures. The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to approve the legality of the bonds or notes. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds or notes; to designate one or more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the bonds or notes; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or notes; to designate a financial advisor to the Town in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes; to sell the bonds or notes at public or private sale; to deliver the bonds or notes; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or appropriate to issue the bonds or notes.
- (e) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that project costs may be paid from temporary advances of available funds and that the Town reasonably expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the project. The First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or advisable and to bind the Town

pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the bonds or notes authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years.

- (f) That the First Selectman or the Town Manager, and the Treasurer are authorized to make representations and enter into written agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds or notes to provide secondary market disclosure information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds or notes.
- (g) That the Board of Selectmen, the First Selectman, the Town Manager, the Treasurer, the Board of Education and other proper officers of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to complete the project and to issue bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the aforesaid appropriation.

RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING APPROPRIATIONS FROM GENERAL FUND AVAILABLE CASH:

RESOLVED, That the Board of Selectmen recommends that the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the General Fund available cash the following amounts for the purposes set forth below:

	General Purpose Projects (CASH)	
CIP		
#		
(add)	Open Space Planning and Improvements	\$ 140,000
	POCD, Land Use Studies	\$ 35,000
	Regulation Update	\$ 65,000
	Dam Evaluations and Repairs	\$ 75,000

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE GENERAL FUND \$140,000 FOR OPEN SPACE PLANNING AND IMPROVEMENTS

RESOLVED, That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the General Fund ONE HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$140,000) for open space planning and improvements. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE GENERAL FUND \$35,000 FOR AN UPDATE OF THE PLAN OF CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT, POCD, LAND USE STUDIES

RESOLVED, That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the General Fund THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$35,000) for an update of the Plan of Conservation and Development, land use planning studies. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE GENERAL FUND \$65,000 FOR REGULATION UPDATE

RESOLVED, That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the General Fund SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$65,000) for regulation update consisting of review and rewrite of existing subdivision regulations and town improvement standards. The appropriation may be spent for design, survey fees, engineering and other consultants' fees, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FROM THE GENERAL FUND \$75,000 FOR DAM EVALUATIONS AND REPAIRS

RESOLVED, That the Town of Simsbury appropriate from the General Fund SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$75,000) for dam evaluations and repairs to Town Forest Road Dam, Stoddard Reservoir Dam, Library Lane Dam, Simsbury Farms Pond Dam and Lake Basile Dam. The appropriation may be spent for design, engineering and other consultants' fees, legal fees, and other expenses related to the project. The Board of Selectmen may determine the particulars, and may reduce or modify the scope of the project, and the entire appropriation may be spent on the reduced or modified project.